
 

City of Coachella Permit Center 

53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California 

(760) 398-3002      www.coachella.org 

AGENDA 

 

OF A REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE  

 

 

 CITY OF COACHELLA 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

October 16, 2019 

6:00 PM 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

ROLL CALL: 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

“At this time the Commission may announce any items being pulled from the agenda or continued to another 

date or request the moving of an item on the agenda.” 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 

1. Minutes from the Planning Commission Meeting October 2nd, 2019.  

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 

“The public may address the Commission on any item of interest to the public that is not on the agenda, but is 

within the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your comments to five (5) minutes.” 

REPORTS AND REQUESTS: 

NON-HEARING ITEMS: 

2. Policy Discussion on Coachella 380 Project located at the Northeast Corner of Avenue 49 and Van Buren 

Street. 

  

Page 1

http://www.coachella.org/


Agenda Planning Commission October 16, 2019 

Page 2 

 

PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL): 

3. Change of Zone (CZ 18-11), Conditional Use Permits (CUP 310 and 311), Variance (VAR 18-09), 

Architectural Review (AR 18-09) and Environmental Assessment (EA 18-05) recommending the adoption 

of a Mitigated Negative Declaration, to allow the phased development of the Coachella Travel Centre 

project including a 3,800 sq. ft. convenience store with service station, 1,200 sq. ft. drive-thru restaurant, 

5,555 sq. ft. restaurant, 2,677 sq. ft. car wash tunnel, 4,754 sq. ft. truck washing facility, and 11, 259 sq .ft 

4-story hotel with related infrastructure on 14.1 acres of vacant land located on the south side of Avenue 50 

between the Whitewater Channel and the State Route 86 Expressway in Coachella, California. Alex 

Mucino, Applicant. 

4. Coachella Smoke Retail Cannabis Microbusiness 

a.  Change of Zone 18-02 to add the RC (Retail Cannabis) overlay zone to the existing C-G (General 

Commercial) zone for the proposed retail cannabis microbusiness at the northwest corner of Grapefruit 

Boulevard and 7th Street. 

b.  Conditional Use Permit (CUP 298) to convert an existing commercial tenant space into a retail cannabis 

microbusiness to include: 400 square feet of retail cannabis showroom display; 265 square feet for 

cannabis distribution and manufacturing uses; and 455 square feet for an indoor cannabis lounge that 

includes on-site consumption of cannabis products at 85-995 Grapefruit Boulevard, Suite #1, Coachella, 

California.  

INFORMATIONAL: 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 
 

 
i Any writing or documents pertaining to an open session item provided to a majority of the Planning Commission less than 

72 hours prior to the meeting, shall be made available for public inspection at the first counter of 

City of Coachella Permit Center located at 53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California 

during normal business hours. 

 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

  

Page 2



Page 3

ITEM 1.



Page 4

ITEM 1.



Page 5

ITEM 1.



Page 6

ITEM 1.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/16/2019 

TO: Planning Commission Chair and Commissioners 

FROM: Luis Lopez, Development Services Director  

SUBJECT: Policy Discussion on Coachella 380 Project located at the Northeast Corner of 

Avenue 49 and Van Buren Street. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission review the attached exhibits and provide staff 

with direction regarding the proposed project.  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Rancho Las Flores community located on the north side of Avenue 49, east of Van Buren 

Street, had a second phase of construction that was never completed.  It is located on the 30 acres 

at the northeast corner of Avenue 49 and Van Buren Street.  This property was foreclosed upon 

by the noteholder, Glenroy Coachella, LLC who is the developer of the Glenroy Resort and who 

in 2007 sold the City the 29 acres of land where the existing Rancho Las Flores Park is located.  

 

On May 10, 2012 the City Council approved General Plan Amendment 10-01 and Change of 

Zone 10-02 to allow for a 380-unit multifamily residential apartments project on 30 acres of 

vacant land located at the northeast corner of Avenue 49 and Van Buren Street.  The developer 

was Glenroy Coachella, LLC and they had attempted to get public funding for an affordable 

housing development.  However, the developer was unable to secure funding for the project. 

 

On October 8, 2014, the City Council approved Tentative Tract Map No.36757 which approved 

a 124-lot single family residential subdivision on the project site, similar in design to the original 

community.  At that time, the City Council had concerns with the current RM (Multifamily 

Residential) zoning because of the potential impacts on utility infrastructure, and impacts to the 

public school enrollments.  Glenroy sold the land to a new entity who has been unable to secure 

a builder for the single family residential project, and the tentative map will expire as of this 

week.  

 

Additionally, on April 22, 2015 the City Council adopted the General Plan 2035 Comprehensive 

Update and designated the site as “Urban Neighborhood” which calls for very-high density 

residential ranging from 20 to 38 dwelling units per acre, with an average of 30 units per acre for 

new projects.  

 

Page 7

ITEM 2.



DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

On August 29, 2019 the applicant and engineer-of-record, Kurt Saxon, met with City staff and 

the developer to discuss the Coachella 380 Project on the subject site. This is a reactivation of the 

2012 multifamily residential project which has a density of 12.6 dwelling units per acre.  This 

density falls short of the General Plan’s intended “average density” of 30 units per acre for new 

developments in this land use category.  Staff needs direction from the Planning Commission on 

whether the density and/or the current street configurations are in substantial compliance with 

the vision set forth in the General Plan for this vicinity.  

 

Site Planning: 

  

The subject site was previously graded for streets, rough pads, and retention basin including the 

installation of curb and gutter, perimeter fencing and sewer lines.   Accordingly, the Coachella 

380 project will use the existing street configuration of the original project, as shown on the 

aerial photograph and site plan below.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8

ITEM 2.



 

 

 

 

The site plan above was presented during Pre-Application Review maintains the existing street 

grading configuration, but would add a new community entrance on Avenue 49 as encouraged 

by the General Plan mobility element.   This is substantially similar to the 2012 multifamily 

residential project, which proposed to convert the streets into private drives with 90-degree 

parking and carports along the street edges.  The dwelling units in 2012 were “modular” 

buildings” and this project proposes wood/frame and metal roof, with stucco exterior walls 

construction.  The units would be subdivided as “condominiums” and offered as market-rate 

Page 9

ITEM 2.



owner-occupied dwelling units for sale.  The housing types consist of one and two-story 

dwellings in a “townhouse” style wherein there are no stacked units. Additionally, staff 

recommended a re-design of the main entry on Van Buren Street, due to the short queue space 

for vehicles and to improve the public/private access areas on this busy street.  Because the 2012 

project had a comprehensive Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared, staff believes the current 

project could proceed to Architectural Review in a streamlined manner, provided the 

Commission believes that the project design and density is substantially in compliance with the 

General Plan 2035 policies.  

 

Economic Development Considerations:  

 

The City’s Economic Development Manager who works in the City Manager’s office has 

indicated support for the project, due to the permitting and impact fee considerations of a new 

development. Similarly, the developer has indicated they are interested in pursuing an economic 

incentive package to defer fees for the project, and defer off-site improvements in exchange for 

the benefits of the development.   

 

The development would enhance the City’s property tax base, and would increase the available 

workforce and resort housing opportunities for the current and future residents of the City of 

Coachella.  There are some challenges associated with removal and replacement of existing 

infrastructure that was previously installed, in that removing the perimeter fencing or the existing 

street configuration would result in a significant financial burden for the project.  These are some 

of the justifications for the requested economic incentive agreement being contemplated by the 

developer.  

 

Architectural Theming:  

 

The Coachella 380 Project would be subject to Architectural Review by the Planning 

Commission, and City Council would review the project as part of the Tentative Tract Map 

request for condominium purposes.  The exhibits below are preliminary artistic renderings of the 

housing unit types including a one-story unit and two-story units.  Additionally, the applicant has 

shown two renderings of the proposed Clubhouse and public parking areas.  

 

Page 10

ITEM 2.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11

ITEM 2.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12

ITEM 2.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The developer has indicated that they want to use a standing-seam metal roof to mimic the 

Glenroy Resort architecture.  Staff has recommended a different color scheme with earth-tone or 

gray roof and trim colors to be in keeping with the surroundings.  The units all provide private 

Page 13

ITEM 2.



open space patios and front entry/porch elements.   Similarly, the exterior architecture blends a 

variety of building materials including textured stucco, stone veneer, and metal cladding for a 

contemporary craftsman inspiration.  

 

GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY: 

 

As part of the Pre-Application Review of the Coachella 380 project, staff noted that the proposed 

project is designated as Urban Neighborhood under the City’s General Plan 2035 Land Use and 

Community Character Element. The “Urban Neighborhood” allows a high-intensity, walkable, 

transit-ready neighborhood with a variety of types of housing, but predominantly intended for 

multi-family of various types to be located in close proximity to high quantities of commercial, 

civic, and recreational uses. The larger vicinity of the site includes the Glenroy Resort and 

Rancho Las Flores Park to the north, the Coachella Village Apartments to the northwest, and 

Neighborhood Center (mixed use) designations on the west side of Van Buren Street.  Therefore, 

the City’s long-range vision for the buildout of this area includes high-density residential with 

neighborhood commercial uses.  Van Buren Street is a transit corridor and is expected to grow its 

employment opportunities in the coming years.   

 

If the Commission believes that the project as proposed requires a General Plan Amendment to 

reduce the density to 13 dwelling units per acre, this has implications for the City’s Housing 

Element.  During the City’s Update to the Housing Element, which included 5th cycle Regional 

Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) this property was identified as an opportunity site for very 

high density residential.  Therefore, staff believes that the expired Single Family Residential tract 

map did not comply with the City’s goals and policies.  The Coachella 380 project is a 

reasonable attempt to create the envisioned community character, while utilizing the existing 

infrastructure that was left in place from over 20 years ago, but falls short of the 30 dwelling 

units per acre density.  Therefore, staff would prepare to update the Housing Element in the 

upcoming 6th Cycle which commences in 2022 to make up the difference in zoning capacity left 

from this project, in order to build very high-density residential developments.  

 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

The change from 124 single family residential units to 380 townhouse units is a step in the right 

direction, but is not wholly consistent with the density range for the Urban Neighborhood land 

use classification. Staff recommends that the Planning Commission consider the information 

contained herein and the testimony at the public hearing, to make a finding of substantial 

conformity with the General Plan land use and community character element in light of the 

project’s history and unique circumstances, and direct staff to update the Housing Element in the 

6th Cycle update to reconcile the potential loss in density zoning capacity to accommodate the 

proposed project due to its economic and secondary benefits for the City of Coachella.   

 

Page 14

ITEM 2.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/16/2019 

TO: Planning Commission Chair and Commissioners 

FROM: Luis Lopez, Development Services Director 

SUBJECT: Change of Zone (CZ 18-11), Conditional Use Permits (CUP 310 and 311), 

Variance (VAR 18-09), Architectural Review (AR 18-09) and Environmental 

Assessment (EA 18-05) recommending the adoption of a Mitigated Negative 

Declaration, to allow the phased development of the Coachella Travel Centre 

project including a 3,800 sq. ft. convenience store with service station, 1,200 sq. 

ft. drive-thru restaurant, 5,555 sq. ft. restaurant, 2,677 sq. ft. car wash tunnel, 

4,754 sq. ft. truck washing facility, and 11, 259 sq .ft 4-story hotel with related 

infrastructure on 14.1 acres of vacant land located on the south side of Avenue 

50 between the Whitewater Channel and the State Route 86 Expressway in 

Coachella, California. Alex Mucino, Applicant. 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

This case item was continued from the October 2, 2019 Planning Commission meeting due to 

expressed concerns regarding the environmental review documents, and their relationship to the 

new Cal-Trans Interchange on the 86-S Expressway.    

 

UPDATE: 

 

At the time that this staff report was written, staff had consulted with the Project CEQA 

consultant and with the City Attorney on compiling the necessary information and exhibits to 

bring this item back for Planning Commission deliberations/recommendations to City Council.    

The CEQA consultant had prepared prepared preliminary exhibits showing the new bridge over 

the Whitewater Channel and the realignment of Avenue 50 and Tyler Street for the future 

interchange over the 86-S Expressway, and was in discussions with the City Attorney on 

preparation of an errata to the CEQA documents.    

 

However, additional time is needed in order to finalize the exhibits and explanation of how the 

projects are interrelated, finalize the CEQA errata sheets, and get City Attorney review, and 

compile all of this into the agenda packet with the revised findings and resolution action items.  

Therefore, staff recommends that the Planning Commission continue this item to the November 

6, 2019 Planning Commission meeting.  

 

Page 15

ITEM 3.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/16/2019 

TO: Planning Commission Chair and Commissioners 

FROM: Luis Lopez, Development Services Director 

SUBJECT: Coachella Smoke Retail Cannabis Microbusiness 

a.  Change of Zone 18-02 to add the RC (Retail Cannabis) overlay zone to the 

existing C-G (General Commercial) zone for the proposed retail cannabis 

microbusiness at the northwest corner of Grapefruit Boulevard and 7th Street. 

b.  Conditional Use Permit (CUP 298) to convert an existing commercial tenant 

space into a retail cannabis microbusiness to include: 400 square feet of retail 

cannabis showroom display; 265 square feet for cannabis distribution and 

manufacturing uses; and 455 square feet for an indoor cannabis lounge that 

includes on-site consumption of cannabis products at 85-995 Grapefruit 

Boulevard, Suite #1, Coachella, California.  
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt the following resolutions for the Coachella 

Smoke retail cannabis microbusiness, CUP 298 and CZ 18-02. 

 

1)  Resolution No. 2019-25 recommending to the City Council approval of Conditional Use 

Permit No. 298 to convert an existing commercial tenant space into a retail cannabis 

microbusiness that includes: 400 square feet of retail cannabis showroom display; 265 

square feet for cannabis distribution and manufacturing uses; and 455 square feet for an 

indoor cannabis lounge that includes on-site consumption of cannabis products 

 

2)  Resolution No. 2019-26 recommending to the City Council approval of Change of Zone 

No. 18-02 that proposes to add the RC (Retail Cannabis) overlay zone to the existing   C-

G (General Commercial) zone.  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The above referenced applications are proposed in an existing commercial building at the NW 

corner of Grapefruit Blvd and 7th Street as illustrated on the following aerial photograph: 

 

 

 

Page 16

ITEM 4.



 

  
 

The photograph below is looking at the existing building from Grapefruit Blvd. The cannabis 

microbusiness will be on the left side of the building and the existing Coachella Bar is located on 

the right side. There is no interior or exterior access between the two uses. 

 

 
 

Page 17

ITEM 4.



 

The photograph below is looking at the side of the building from 7th Street. Note that the door on 

the left side of the building is used for deliveries for the proposed retail microbusiness. 

 

 

 

History of the Existing Building 

 

According to information obtained from Riverside County, the lot was recorded on June 1, 1902 

and the building was constructed in 1912. It is one of the oldest buildings in Coachella and based 

on the photograph below was once a drug store, while the site of Coachella Bar at one time was a 

bank. 

 

 
 

Page 18

ITEM 4.



Staff has reviewed the building permits that have been issued for the property (see attachment 4) 

The first record of a building permit was issued on September 10, 1970 to the El Charrito Café for 

a plastic sign. On June 9, 1976 a permit was issued for a reroof for the Las Flores Restaurant. 

Based on the permit history, it appears that Las Flores Restaurant operated in the building until 

January 2015 when it was shut down by the Riverside County Health Department for health code 

violations because it did not meet the minimum “C” rating. 

 

Additional building permits were issued in December 2017 for the wall sign that exists on the front 

of the building. No building permits have been issued since December 2017. 

 

Overview of the Coachella Smoke Microbusiness (CUP 298)  

 

The project proposes a retail cannabis microbusiness consisting of the following uses as shown on 

the floor plan below: 

 

 . Approximately 400 square feet of retail cannabis showroom display  

 . Approximately 265 square feet for distribution and manufacturing that includes 

packaging and labeling. No extraction is proposed and no chemicals will be used. 

 . Approximately 455 square feet as an indoor cannabis lounge that includes on-site 

consumption of cannabis products. 

 

 
 

Page 19

ITEM 4.



As seen from the exhibit below, the Applicant is proposing the following modifications to the 

outside of the building:  

 

 New light beige smooth plaster on the front and south side of the building  

 New windows and front door 

 New awnings, new brown trim, signage and lighting 

 Removal of the existing bars on the windows and doors 

 New public art as illuminated “City Sign” on the south side of the building as 

illustrated on the exhibit below.  

 Removal of existing attached wall sign that is perpendicular to the building  

 Lowering of existing railing in front of Coachella Bar business 

 New raised planters under the two windows 

 

 
 

Page 20

ITEM 4.



 
 

The new raised landscaped planters proposed at the front of the building are illustrated on the 

following exhibit. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21

ITEM 4.



Proposed 5’ x 36’ ft. public art illuminated City Sign on 7th Street building wall 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Proposed Awnings 

 

The Applicant is proposing awnings over the two front windows as illustrated below: 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 22

ITEM 4.



 

 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

 

Environmental Setting: 

 

The site is designated as being within the Downtown Center 

on the 2035 Coachella General Plan as illustrated on the 

exhibit to the right. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The project site is zoned General Commercial (C-G) as 

illustrated on the exhibit to the left. Surrounding properties to 

the north, south and west are zoned C-G (General 

Commercial), while land to the east across Grapefruit Blvd is 

zoned M-S, Manufacturing Service. 

 

Surrounding land uses to the north, south, east and west of the 

site consist of commercial land uses. The Union Pacific 

Railroad right-of-way is on the east side of Grapefruit 

Boulevard. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Consistency with the Coachella General Plan  

 

The proposed project is within the “Downtown Center” land use designation of the General Plan 

2035 Land Use Element which encourages very high-density residential uses mixed with 

commercial uses on the ground floor, in an urban environment. The project is consistent with the 

development intensity permitted by the Downtown Center land use category as the property is 

Page 23

ITEM 4.



largely covered with commercial buildings and is oriented towards the pedestrian/sidewalk 

environment.  

 

 

Consistency with the (C-G) General Commercial Zone 

 

The parcel in question was created in 1902 within the jurisdiction of Riverside County, 44 years 

before the City incorporated in December 1946. The existing building proposed for the cannabis 

microbusiness measures 22 feet wide and is 41 feet long with a total square footage of 931 square 

feet. 

 

As stated previously, the building was constructed in 1912, before the current development 

standards of the General Commercial (C-G) zone were enacted by the City of Coachella.  

 

Because the building was constructed before the General Commercial (C-G) zoning standards 

were established within the City of Coachella, it does not meet the current standards for minimum 

lot width, minimum side yard setback, nor does the project meet the requirement for a 15 foot front 

yard setback, as the building was constructed on the front and side yard property lines. 

 

Consistency with Section 17.54.010 Parking and Landscaping Requirements 

 

The total square footage of the proposed microbusiness is 1120 square feet. Based on the Municipal 

Code, a total of 4.5 spaces would be required. As mentioned earlier in the staff report, the building 

was constructed in 1912 and does not include any off-street parking. The Applicant has a signed 

lease with UP Railroad for property located across Grapefruit Blvd, which at one time was 

proposed for parking for the Coachella Smoke Project. However, the City has concerns with 

parking at this location because future patrons would be required to cross Grapefruit Blvd. at an 

un-signalized intersection. An illustration of the proposed parking area is provided below for 

illustrative purposes only: 

 

Page 24

ITEM 4.



 
 

The Planning Department has retained a consultant that is currently conducting a block by block 

assessment of downtown parking needs based on current land uses and build out anticipated by 

the General Plan as well as the Pueblo Viejo Plan. This study will lead to overall parking 

recommendations for the downtown area. As stated previously, based on the size of this lot and 

the size of the existing building, it would be impossible for any proposed retail use to provide the 

required number of parking spaces. 

 

Section J of Section 17.54.010 specifies the landscaping requirements for projects within the City. 

Because the lot was created and the building constructed before these standards were in existence 

it is impossible for the proposed project to meet the requirements of this section. Section J4 of 

Section 17.54.010 requires that internal landscaping equal a minimum 5% of the parking areas. 

Since no off-street parking is proposed, the project cannot meet this requirement.  

 

The Applicant is proposing raised planters at the front of the building.  

The project is within the Urban Greening Corridor that will be constructed along Grapefruit Blvd 

as illustrated on the exhibit below that will add greenery to Grapefruit Blvd. 

Page 25

ITEM 4.



 
 

The Planning Department considers the existing building a non-conforming use and as such, the 

Director has the discretion of allowing the proposed uses to proceed without adherence to the 

above reference specific zoning standards.  

Furthermore, the existing building will be brought up to all current building codes prior to the 

issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 

 

Consistency with Section 17.47: RC Retail Cannabis Overlay Zone 

The proposed project is within Sub-Zone 1 as identified within Chapter 17.47 of the Municipal 

Code. The project meets the property development standards as identified in Section 17.47.060, 

A-E as outlined below, except for Standard F1 and F2 regarding adherence to on and off-site 

parking: 

 

17.47.060 - Property development standards.  

 

A. Project Area/Lot/Building Height Requirements. Except as specified in the applicable 

development agreement, CUP or regulatory permit, the project area, lot size, lot coverage and 

building height requirements of the underlying zone shall apply.  

 

B.  No Drive-Thru Retail Cannabis Facilities. No retail cannabis business within the RC Overlay 

Zone shall operate "drive-thru", "drive up", "window service" or similar facilities whereby a 

customer can order, purchase and receive retail cannabis without leaving his or her vehicle.  

 

Page 26

ITEM 4.



C.  No Non-Storefront Retailers. No retail cannabis business within the RC overlay zone shall be 

operated as "non-storefront" or "delivery only". Delivery may only be approved as ancillary to 

the operation of a permitted cannabis retail business which is physically located within the RC 

overlay zone and which primarily provides cannabis to customers on the premises.  

 

D.  Distance Restrictions. No retail cannabis business within the RC overlay zone shall be located 

within two hundred fifty (250) feet of any public or private school (K-12), day care center or 

youth center. The distance shall be measured from the nearest point between any part of the 

building containing the retail cannabis business to any lot line of the other use. For purposes 

of this paragraph, the following definitions shall apply:  

 

1.  "Day care center" means any child day care facility other than a family day care home, 

and includes infant centers, preschools, extended day care facilities and school age child 

care centers.  

2.  "Youth center" means any public or private facility that is primarily used to house 

recreational or social activities for minors, including, but not limited to, private youth 

membership organizations or clubs, social service teenage club facilities, video arcades, 

or similar amusement park facilities.  

 

E.  Location of Customer Entrance. No retail cannabis business shall have a customer entrance 

that is adjacent to or directly across the street from a residentially zoned lot.  

 

F.  On-Street/Off-Street Parking and Loading.  

1.  Off-Street Parking and Loading. Off-street parking and loading facilities for a retail 

cannabis business shall be provided in accordance with the provisions of Section 

17.54.010-C (1) of this title.  

2.  On-Street Parking and Loading. On-street parking or loading shall be prohibited for a 

retail cannabis business.  

  

The proposed conditional use permit meets all the above development standards except for 

Standard F1 and F2-On-Street parking. A discussion on overall downtown parking is 

discussed previously in the staff report. 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 

 

The City has determined that the project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 

(CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15303 (C) that exempts the conversion of existing 

small structures from one use to another where only minor modifications are made to the exterior 

of the structure. 

 

CORRESPONDENCE: 

 

The City has not received any correspondence for the proposed project 

  

 

 

Page 27

ITEM 4.



 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1) Approve Conditional Use Permit No. 298 and Change of Zone No. 18-02 with the findings 

and conditions as recommended by the Planning Commission and Staff. 

 

2) Deny Conditional Use Permit No. 298 and Change of Zone 18-02. 

 

3)   Continue these items and provide staff and the applicant with direction. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

It is staff’s recommendation that the Planning Commission open the public hearing and allow input 

from all proponents and opponents of the proposed project. Because the proposed Project is in 

conformance with the City’s General Plan and the proposed use would be consistent with the 

Municipal Code and compatible with the surrounding uses in the area, it is staff’s recommendation 

that the proposed project be approved by taking the following actions: 

 

1. Motion to adopt Resolution No. PC 2019-24 recommending to the City Council approval 

of Conditional Use Permit No. 298 with the findings and attached conditions of approval 

 

2. Motion to adopt Resolution PC 2019-25 recommending to the City Council approval of 

Change of Zone 18-03 with the attached findings. 

 

  

   
Attachments: 

 

 Attachment No. 1: Resolution No. PC 2019-24 for CUP 298 

 Attachment No. 2: Resolution No. PC 2019-25 for CZ 18-02 

 Attachment No. 3: Exhibit A: Conditions of Approval for CUP 298  

Attachment No. 4: Historical Building Permits 

 

 

 

Page 28

ITEM 4.



Resolution No. PC 2019-25 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. PC2019-25 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA PLANNING 

COMMISSION RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL 

APPROVAL OF CHANGE OF ZONE 18-02 THAT PROPOSES TO ADD 

THE PROVISIONS OF THE RETAIL CANNABIS OVERLAY ZONE 

(RC) TO THE EXISITNG GENERAL COMMERCIAL ZONE (C-G) 

ZONE ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER 

OF GRAPEFRUIT BLVD. AND 7TH STREET. NICK MEZA, 

COACHELLA SMOKE, APPLICANT. 

 

WHEREAS, Nick Meza (on behalf of Coachella Smoke) filed an application for 

Change of Zone 18-02 on property located at the northwest corner of Grapefruit Blvd and 

7th Street, and attendant applications Conditional Use Permit 298 Assessor’s Parcel No 

778-100-013 (“Project”); and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed public hearing 

on Change of Zone 18-02 and CUP 298 on October 16, 2019 at the Coachella Permit 

Center, 53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Applicant and members of the public were present and were 

afforded an opportunity to testify regarding the Project; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Project is permitted pursuant to Chapter 17.47 of the Coachella 

Municipal Code, and the attendant applications for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the 

Project; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed use is necessary or desirable for the development of 

the community, is consistent with the objectives of the City’s General Plan, and is not 

detrimental to the existing uses or the uses specifically permitted in the zone in which the 

proposed use is to be located; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed site is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the 

proposed development; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the site for proposed use relates properly to streets which are 

designed to carry the type and quantity of traffic to be generated by the proposed use; 

and, 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from the provisions of the California 

Environmental Quality Act, as amended; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the conditions as stipulated by the City are necessary to protect the 

public health, safety and welfare of the community. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission of 

the City of Coachella, California does hereby recommend to the City Council approval of 

Change of Zone 18-02 subject to the findings listed below and the attached Conditions of 

Page 29

ITEM 4.



Resolution No. PC 2019-25 

Page 2 

 

Approval for the Coachella Smoke Microbusiness (contained in “Exhibit A” for CUP 298 

and made a part herein). 

 

Findings for Change of Zone 18-02: 

 
1. The Project is consistent with the goals, objectives, policies, and implementation 

measures of the Coachella General Plan 2035. The site has a Downtown Center land 

use designation that allows for the proposed development. The proposed change of 

zone is in keeping with the policies of the Downtown Center land use classification 

and the Project is internally consistent with other General Plan policies for this type 

of development.  
 

2. The Project is in compliance with the applicable land use regulations and 

development standards of the City’s Zoning Code. The site plan proposes a cannabis 

microbusiness. The Project complies with applicable C-G (General Commercial) and 

Section 17.47.020 property development standards as proposed. 
 

3. Every use, development of land and application of architectural guidelines and 

development standards shall be considered on the basis of the suitability of the site for 

a particular use or development intended, and the total development, including the 

prescribed development standards, shall be so arranged as to avoid traffic congestion, 

ensure the protection of public health, safety and general welfare, prevent adverse 

effects on neighboring property and shall be in accord with all elements of the general 

plan. The proposed change of zone is compatible with existing surrounding land uses 

that include commercial land uses.  

 

4. The Project will be compatible with neighboring properties with respect to land 

development patterns and application of architectural treatments. The plans submitted 

for this Project propose a cannabis microbusiness that is permitted in the C-G 

(General Commercial) zone pursuant to an approved Conditional Use Permit. 

Surrounding properties to the project site include commercial land uses. As such, the 

Project will be in keeping with the scale, massing, and aesthetic appeal of the existing 

area and future development.  

 

5.  The Project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant 

 to CEQA Guidelines Section 15303 (C) that exempts the conversion of existing 

 small structures from one use to another where only minor modifications are 

 made to the exterior of the structure. 

 

 

PASSED APPROVED and ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2019. 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Javier Soliz,  Chairperson 

Coachella Planning Commission 

Page 30

ITEM 4.



Resolution No. PC 2019-25 

Page 3 

 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Yesenia Becerril  

Planning Commission Secretary 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Carlos Campos 

City Attorney 

 

 

Page 31

ITEM 4.



 

 

             I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. PC-2019-25, was 

duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of 

Coachella, California, held on the 16th day of October 2019, by the following roll 

call vote: 

 

AYES:    

   

NOES:    

   

ABSENT:    

 

ABSTAIN:   

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Yesenia Bercerril 

Planning Commission Secretary 

 

 

 

Page 32

ITEM 4.



Resolution No. PC 2019-24 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. PC2019-24 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA PLANNING COMMISSION 

RECOMMENDING APPROVAL TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF CONDITIONAL 

USE PERMIT NO. CUP 298 TO CONVERT AN EXISTING COMMERCIAL 

TENANT SPACE INTO A RETAIL CANNABIS MICROBUSINESS.  THE 

PROJECT PROPOSES APPROXIMATELY 400 SQUARE FEET OF RETAIL 

CANNABIS SHOWROOM DISPLAY, 265 SQUARE FEET FOR CANNABIS 

DISTRIBUTION AND MANUFACTURING USES, AND 455 SQUARE FEET FOR 

AN INDOOR CANNABIS LOUNGE THAT INCLUDES ON-SITE CONSUMPTION 

OF CANNABIS PRODUCTS IN THE C-G (GENERAL COMMERCIAL ZONE) 

LOCATED AT 85-995 GRAPEFRUIT BOULEVARD, SUITE #1 (NORTHWEST 

CORNER OF GRAPEFRUIT BLVD AND 7TH STREET); NICHOLAS MEZA, 

APPLICANT.  

 

WHEREAS, Nicholas Meza (on behalf of Coachella Smoke Company) filed an 

application for Change of Zone 18-02 and Conditional Use Permit No. 298 to convert an 

existing commercial tenant space into a retail cannabis microbusiness; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the project proposes approximately 400 square feet of retail 

cannabis showroom display, 265 square feet for cannabis distribution and manufacturing 

uses, and 455 square feet for an indoor cannabis lounge that includes on-site consumption 

of cannabis products on a parcel located at the northwest corner of Grapefruit Blvd. and 

7th Street, Assessor’s Parcel No. 778-100-013 (“Project”); and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed public hearing 

on CUP No. 298 on October 16, 2019 at the Coachella Permit Center, 53-990 Enterprise 

Way, Coachella, California; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Applicant and members of the public were present and were 

afforded an opportunity to testify regarding the Project; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Project is permitted pursuant to Chapter 17.38 of the Coachella 

Municipal Code, and the attendant applications for Conditional Use Permits and a 

Change of Zone to allow the Project; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed use is necessary or desirable for the development of 

the community, is consistent with the objectives of the City’s General Plan, and is not 

detrimental to the existing uses or the uses specifically permitted in the zone in which the 

proposed use is to be located; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed site is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the 

proposed development; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the site for proposed use relates properly to streets which are 

designed to carry the type and quantity of traffic to be generated by the proposed use; 

and, 

Page 33

ITEM 4.



Resolution No. PC 2019-24 

Page 2 

 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed project is exempt from the California Environmental 

Quality Act, as amended; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the conditions as stipulated by the City are necessary to protect the 

public health, safety and welfare of the community. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission of 

the City of Coachella, California does hereby recommend to the City Council approval of 

Conditional Use Permit No. 298, subject to the findings listed below and the attached 

Conditions of Approval for the Coachella Smoke Microbusiness (contained in “Exhibit 

A” and made a part herein). 

 

Findings for Conditional Use Permit No. 298  

 
1. The Project is consistent with the goals, objectives, policies, and implementation 

measures of the Coachella General Plan 2035. The site has a Downtown Center land 

use designation that allows for the proposed development. The proposed uses on the 

site are in keeping with the policies of the Downtown Center land use classification 

and the Project is internally consistent with other General Plan policies for this type 

of development.  
 

2. The Project is in compliance with the applicable land use regulations and 

development standards of the City’s Zoning Code. The site plans proposes a cannabis 

microbusiness including an indoor cannabis lounge where cannabis products will be 

sold and consumed. The Project complies with applicable CG-CO (General 

Commercial-Cannabis Overlay) zoning standards as proposed. 
 

3. Every use, development of land and application of architectural guidelines and 

development standards shall be considered on the basis of the suitability of the site for 

a particular use or development intended, and the total development, including the 

prescribed development standards, shall be so arranged as to avoid traffic congestion, 

ensure the protection of public health, safety and general welfare, prevent adverse 

effects on neighboring property and shall be in accord with all elements of the general 

plan. The Project site is within the Downtown Center land use designation of the 

City’s general plan.  This category provides for a broad spectrum of commercial and 

residential land uses. The proposed uses are compatible with existing adjacent land 

uses. 

4. The City has determined that the project is exempt from the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15303 (C) that exempts 

the conversion of existing small structures from one use to another where only minor 

modifications are made to the exterior of the structure. 

Page 34

ITEM 4.



Resolution No. PC 2019-24 

Page 3 

 

 

 

PASSED APPROVED and ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2019. 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Javier Soliz, Chairperson 

Coachella Planning Commission 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

___________________________________ 

Yesenia Becerril  

Planning Commission Secretary 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Carlos Campos 

City Attorney 

 

Page 35

ITEM 4.



 

 

 

                I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. PC2019-24, was 

duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of 

Coachella, California, held on the 16th day of October 2019, by the following roll 

call vote: 

 

AYES:    

   

NOES:    

   

ABSENT:    

 

ABSTAIN:   

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Yesenia Becerril 

Planning Commission Secretary 

 

 

Page 36

ITEM 4.



1 
 

“EXHIBIT A” 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE COACHELLA SMOKE RETAIL 

MICROBUSINESS (CUP 298). 

 

General Conditions 
 

1. Conditional Use Permit No. 298 is contingent upon City Council approval of the attendant 

Change of Zone 18-02 application. Conditional Use Permit No. 298 hereby approves the 

establishment of a retail cannabis microbusiness including approximately 400 square feet of 

retail cannabis showroom display, 265 square feet for cannabis distribution and 

manufacturing and 455 square feet as an indoor cannabis lounge including on-site 

consumption of cannabis products at 83-995 Grapefruit Blvd, Suite #1. The applicant shall 

secure building permits for tenant improvements for new cannabis microbusiness through the 

City’s Building Division and the Riverside County Fire Marshal’s office prior to the 

commencement of business activities. Hours of operation for the microbusiness business 

may be from 10:00 am to 10:00 pm daily, unless otherwise restricted by the State of 

California. The owner shall procure a City Cannabis Regulatory Permit and a State License 

prior to commencement of business activities. 

 

2. Conditional Use Permit No. 298 shall be valid for 12 months from the effective date of said 

City Council approvals unless the applicant requests an extension of time and granted by the 

Planning Commission. Issuance of building permits and establishment of the retail cannabis 

uses will vest the Conditional Use Permit. 

 

3. The construction of all new structures shall be in conformance with construction drawings 

and landscaping plans designed in accordance with the Coachella Smoke Microbusiness and 

the conditions of approval imposed below: 

 
a. All exterior building materials and colors shall substantially match the exhibits 

submitted with the Coachella Smoke Development applications. 

 

b. All fencing or garden walls shall be subject to issuance of a separate building permit 

by the City Building Division. 

 
c. All parking lot lighting for the Project shall be consistent with the architectural 

design exhibits of the Project, as approved by the Development Services Director. 

 

d. All masonry/wrought iron perimeter walls and garden walls shall be consistent with 

the submitted plans, subject to review by the Development Services Director, and 

subject to the City’s Building Codes. 

Page 37

ITEM 4.



2 
 

 
4. All plans, as shown, are considered “conceptual,” subject to revisions as called out by the 

conditions of this resolution. The plans shall not be stamp-approved until all conditions 

requesting revisions have been satisfied during the building plan check process. Any 

substantial changes to the plans, including changes shown on future building permit plans 

deemed by Staff to not be within substantial conformance with this approval, will require 

an amendment to the approval of the conditional use permits, including architectural 

features, materials and site layout. 

 

5. The project shall comply with all applicable codes, laws and regulations, regardless of 

whether they are listed in these conditions. This includes conformance with the 

requirements of the adopted U.B.C., U.P.C., U.M.C., N.E.C., including all requirements of 

the South Coast Air Quality Management District, the Riverside County Fire Department 

and any requirements by any other agency having jurisdiction on the project. 

 
6.  The applicant shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of Coachella, its 

officials, officers, employees, and agents from and against any claim, action, or proceeding 

against the City, its officials, officers, employees or agents to attack, set aside, void or 

annul any project approval or condition of approval of the city concerning this project, 

including but not limited to any approval or condition of approval or mitigation measure 

imposed by the City Council or Planning Commission. The City shall promptly notify the 

applicant of any claim, action, or proceeding concerning the project and the City shall 

cooperate fully in the defense of the matter. The City reserves the right, at its own option, 

to choose its own attorney to represent the City, its officials, officers, employees and 

agents in the defense of the City Attorney, within five days of the effective date of this 

approval. 

 

7. All plan submittals are the responsibility of the developer; this includes plan submittals to 

the City of Coachella, the Riverside County Fire Department or to other agencies for 

whom plan review and approval is required. 

 

8. Prior to the issuance of building permits, grading or construction, the following mitigation 

measures shall be implemented: 

 

a) In the event any onsite structures are demolished, an asbestos inspection of onsite 

structures shall be conducted by a qualified professional in accordance with currently 

accepted methods and protocols. The inspection shall include, but not be limited to 

Page 38

ITEM 4.



3 
 

visual inspection, sampling, and laboratory analysis for the presence of asbestos 

products, including asbestos-containing material (ACM) and asbestos-containing 

construction material (ACCM). Polarized Light Microscopy and other methods 

consistent with the US EOA 600 method shall be applied to this investigation. A 

comprehensive report that documents methods, findings, and appropriate mitigation 

measures and/or recommendations shall be provided to the City. 

 

b) In the event any onsite structures are demolished, a lead-based paint inspection of 

onsite structures shall be conducted by a qualified professional in accordance with 

currently accepted methods and protocols. Inspections shall be carried out in 

accordance with US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

guidelines, as well as OSHA Lead Exposure in Construction, Code of Federal 

Regulations, Title 29, Section 1926. The inspection shall include, but not be limited 

to visual inspection, sampling, and analysis of materials suspected of containing lead 

paint or other lead-based materials and coatings. A comprehensive report that 

documents methods, findings, and appropriate mitigation measures and/or 

recommendations shall be provided to the City. 

 

c) Prior to the start of any activity that might disturb materials potentially containing 

asbestos, lead, and/or other hazardous or potentially hazardous materials, a qualified 

and licensed contractor shall be hired to complete necessary abatement procedures. 

All demolition and other project related actions that might potentially disturb 

hazardous materials shall be performed by properly trained and qualified personnel. 

Remediation actions are expected to include but will not be limited to thefollowing: 

 

1. Each part of the building from which asbestos is being removed shall, as 

appropriate, be sealed off in order to prevent contamination of the other area. 

Methods of area containment may include polyethylene film, duct tape, negative 

air pressure machines and other appropriate means depending on the type of 

asbestos materials encountered. 

 

2. Specially designed vacuum cleaners that are designed for asbestos containment 

(class H) can be safely used when cleaning up during and after asbestos removal. 

 

3. Removed asbestos and materials with embedded or coated with asbestos shall, 

as appropriate, be double wrapped in plastic and driven to a landfill. 

 

d) If surficial or buried materials within the project site are found to contain potentially 

hazardous materials (such as: asbestos-containing material, lead-based paint, 

and mercury or PCB-containing material) such materials shall be removed properly 

prior to any further site disturbance in the affected area, and disposed of at 

appropriate landfills or recycled, in accordance with the regulatory guidance 

provided in California Code of Regulation (CCR) and following the requirements of 

the Universal Waste Rule (40 CFR part 9). 

 

e) During project construction and implementation, the handling, storage, transport, and 

Page 39

ITEM 4.



4 
 

disposal of all chemicals, including herbicides and pesticides, runoff, hazardous 

material and waste used on, or at, the project site, shall be in accordance with 

applicable local, state, and federal regulations. 

 

f) Vapor Encroachment Screening shall be conducted in accordance with the ASTM 

Standard E2600-10 Standard Guide for Vapor Encroachment Screening on Property 

Involved in Real Estate Transactions to identify the likelihood of migrating vapors to 

encroach on the subject property, thereby creating a Vapor Encroachment Condition 

(VEC). A complete report of findings and recommended mitigation measures, if any, 

shall be provided to the City prior to the issuance of building permits. 

 

g) A vapor intrusion risk evaluation shall be conducted in accordance with most recent 

version of the CalEPA Department of Toxic Substances Control’s “Final Guidance 

for the Evaluation and Mitigation of Subsurface Vapor Intrusion to Indoor Air” to 

identify the likelihood of vapor intrusion into future buildings and potential impacts 

on indoor air quality. A complete report of findings and recommended mitigation 

measures, if any, shall be provided to the City prior to the issuance of grading and 

buildingpermits. 

 
h) The applicant shall provide the City with copies of permits required by the South    
Coast Air Quality Management District, or a written confirmation that no permits are 

necessary. 

 

i) The applicant shall satisfy all requirements of the Fire Department relating to 

construction, operation, and emergency response. No building permits shall be issued, 
and no occupancy of the buildings shall be permitted prior to written approval by 

the Fire Department. 

 

Engineering – Grading and Drainage: 
 

9. Site access improvements shall be in conformance with the requirements of Title 24 of the 

California Administrative Code. This shall include access ramps for off-site and on-site 

streets as required. 
 

10. If the applicant is planning to build a wall, separate permits shall be required for wall 

construction. The maximum height of any wall shall be limited to six (6) feet as measured 

from an average of the ground elevations on either side. 
 

Engineering – Street Improvements: 
 

11. Applicant shall construct all off-site and on-site improvements including street pavement, 

curb, gutter, sidewalk, street trees, perimeter walls, perimeter landscaping and irrigation, 

storm drain, street lights, and any other incidental works necessary to complete the 

Page 40

ITEM 4.



5 
 

improvements. Driveways shall conform to City of Coachella standards for commercial 

driveways with a minimum width of 24.00 feet and curbed radius entrances. 
 

12.  Applicant shall obtain an encroachment permit for any improvements constructed within 

public right-of-way including alleys. 
 

Engineering-Sewer and Water Improvements 
 

13. Sewer & Water Improvement Plans prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer shall 

be submitted for engineering plan check and City Engineer approval. 

14. Applicant shall construct all off-site and on-site water improvements and any other incidental 

works necessary to complete the improvements 
 

Engineering – General: 
 

15. Applicant shall take into consideration City’s project titled “Grapefruit Boulevard Urban 

Greening & Connectivity Project” and match improvements proposed for Grapefruit Blvd. 

Engineering department will provide direction on this matter. 
 

16. The developer shall submit a Fugitive Dust Control and Erosion Control plan in accordance 

with Guidelines set forth by CMC and SCAQMD to maintain wind and drainage erosion and 

dust control for all areas disturbed by grading. Exact method(s) of such control shall be 

subject to review and approval by the City Engineer. No sediment is to leave the site. 

Additional securities, in bond form, in amount of $2,000.00 per acre of gross area, and a one 

time cash deposit of $2,000.00 are required to insure compliance with this requirement. No 

work may be started on or off site unless the PM-10 plan has been approved, the original 

plans, and executed dust control agreement, are filed in the engineering department at the 

City of Coachella. 
 

17. The applicant shall pay all necessary plan check, permit and inspection fees. Fees will be 

determined when plans are submitted to the City Engineering Department for plan check. 
 

18. Applicant shall comply with the valley wide NPDES permit requirements including but not 

limited to submittal of a Preliminary WQMP for plan review accompanied by a $3,000 

plancheck deposit and a Final WQMP for final approval including executed maintenance 

agreement. All unused plan check fees will be refunded to the applicant upon approval of 

the Final WQMP. 
 

Engineering – Completion: 
 

19. “As-built" plans shall be submitted to and approved by the City Engineer prior to acceptance 

of the improvements by the City. All off-site and on-site improvements shall be completed 

to the City Engineer prior to acceptance of improvements for maintenance by the City. 

Page 41

ITEM 4.



6 
 

20. Prior to issuance to of certificate of occupancy, all public improvements, including 

landscaping and lighting of the retention basins, and landscaped areas along the exterior 

streets, shall be completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer 

 
Environmental Compliance: 

 

21. The applicant shall comply with the following items prior to issuance of building permits: 

 
a) Verify that asbestos has been mitigated and submit disposal and closure plan 

 

b) Submit detailed plumbing and mechanical plans 

 

c) Facility required to submit a source control survey; 

 
d) Backflow devices; will require Reduced Pressure Principle Device (RP) within 12 

inches of water service installed to protect water supply from contamination or 
pollution; 1 

 
e) Install separate AMI metering system for each building; 

 

f) Install separate AMI water service meter for irrigation system; 

 

g) The project must implement the State’s drought mandate which prohibits irrigation with 

potable water outside newly constructed homes and buildings that is not delivered by 

drip or microspray systems; 

 
22. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall pay all Development Fees to 

the City; including outside agency fees such as sewer water and utilities. Copies of receipts 

shall be provided to the Development Services Department prior to permit issuance. 

 
23. The applicant shall be responsible for paying all applicable development and processing 

(plan check, inspection, etc.) fees associated with this project. 

 

24. The applicant shall pay all required water connection fees. 

 

Coachella Valley Unified School District 

 

25. The Coachella Valley Unified School District is authorized by the State Legislature to levy 

developer fee on commercial development. The Applicant or successor in interest shall 

pay fees in effect at the time of building permit issuance. The fees collected will be used to 

assist in the housing of students within the District. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42

ITEM 4.



7 
 

 
26. The applicant shall replace the existing windows and doors and add awnings above the 

windows, on the Grapefruit Boulevard frontage subject to review by the Development Services 

Director. 

 
27. The owner/operator of the retail cannabis microbusiness shall assign an employee of the retail 

cannabis microbusiness to act as parking monitor to direct vehicles to parking spaces during 

business hours to improve traffic safety. 
 
28. The applicant shall obtain separate sign permits for all wall signs. All signs may be channel 

lettering or logo signs with “halo” lighting and reduced illumination or backlit with gooseneck 

lamps.  
 

 
 

Page 43

ITEM 4.



Page 44

ITEM 4.



Page 45

ITEM 4.



Page 46

ITEM 4.



Page 47

ITEM 4.



Page 48

ITEM 4.



Page 49

ITEM 4.



Page 50

ITEM 4.



Page 51

ITEM 4.



Page 52

ITEM 4.



Page 53

ITEM 4.



Page 54

ITEM 4.



Page 55

ITEM 4.



Page 56

ITEM 4.



Page 57

ITEM 4.



Page 58

ITEM 4.



Page 59

ITEM 4.



Page 60

ITEM 4.



Page 61

ITEM 4.



Page 62

ITEM 4.



Page 63

ITEM 4.



Page 64

ITEM 4.



Page 65

ITEM 4.



Page 66

ITEM 4.



Page 67

ITEM 4.



Page 68

ITEM 4.



Page 69

ITEM 4.



Page 70

ITEM 4.



Page 71

ITEM 4.



Page 72

ITEM 4.


	Top
	1. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes October 2, 2019
	PC Minutes 10-02-2019

	2. Policy Discussion on Coachella 380 Project located at the Northeast Corner of Avenue 49 and Van Buren Street.
	PC Staff Rpt 10-16-19

	3. Coachella Travel Centre - Continued Public Hearing
	PC Staff Rpt 10-16-19

	4. Coachella Smoke Company Retail Cannabis Microbusiness
	PC Staff Rpt 10-16-19
	Reso PC2019-25
	Resolution PC 2019-24
	Conditions of approval
	85995 Grapefruit- permits

	Bottom

